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Application Format and Process

1. Is the format of the application the same as the format for the Commission’s last RFA?

Although the current RFA is substantially the same as the prior three applications, there are several changes to be aware of.  For example:

· Funds Available – this RFA includes capacity building, funds for Injury Prevention, and funds for Early Care and Education / School Readiness new projects.

· Injury Prevention – applicants will need to review Addendum III related to this funding category.

· Early Care and Education / School Readiness – applicants will need to review the Early Care and Education Needs Assessment related to this funding category.

· Grant Agreement – exceptions to any terms must be requested in the cover letter.

· Funding Request Form – this format has been redesigned for further clarity

2. What is the minimum and maximum number of pages allowed?

Applicants are requested to be brief and concise in their responses.  The components of the application include the cover letter, funding application form, funding request form, narrative submittal, work plan, and other required documentation.  Based on the number of collaborative partners, some projects may need to include several copies of the funding application form, funding request form.  Based on the breadth of the project, there may be multiple work plan pages. The only maximum number of pages for each component specified is for the narrative.

3. Are letters of support allowed in addition to 10 narrative pages?
Although not requested nor required, letters of support may be submitted.  The letters would be part of the “Additional Information” section included within the maximum 10-page narrative. As an alternative to submitting letters of support, an applicant may wish to state in the additional information section that letters of support and reference may be obtained upon request, and list the recommend reference organizations. 
The exception to this is the letter of support that is required by applicants who wish to pursue EPSDT leveraged funds.  This letter of concurrence would not be counted as part of the 10 page narrative limitation.

4. Do we have any support to help write the grants?  If the agency does not currently have the experience to write the grant, may a portion of the funds be allocated for a grant writer to assist the agency?

Due to the perception of conflict of interest, Commissioners, Technical 

Advisory Committee members, Commission staff, Commission consultants, and any other Commission representatives may not assist in the development of a grant.  

In addition, requested project funds may not be used to pay for resources required to develop the application.

5. Will those involved in developing the projects be involved in the review process?

The Commission has approved a Request for Application review process that includes:

· Staff review to ensure that applications meet the minimum application and funding requirements

· Funding category Evaluation Panel review and recommendations by Children and Families Commissioners and Technical Advisory Committee

· Commission funding decisions.

Any individual involved in this process maynot participate in developing an application or project.  Information on Commissioners and Technical Advisory Committee members is available on the Commission website.

6. When will the next “request for Application” take place? (Fiscal 2002)
 No specific dates have been established by the Commission for future funding cycles, nor have funding priorities been established.  

7. Is one cover letter sufficient for multiple applications?

One cover letter may be developed for all applications submitted by an organization however a copy of the cover letter must be included with each application submitted.

8. What is the cost for grantees to use OCERS?

There is no grantee fee to use OCERS.  This resource is funded directly by the Commission.  Applicants may wish to budget funds to cover the costs associated with getting technology up to the standards listed on page 15 of the RFA.

9. Are there any ongoing support costs?
If an organization will be providing client specific services, they will be required to participate CDOM (Client Specific Module) reporting.  Organizations may wish to budget for the staff costs, which will be needed to collect and input the data.

10. Why do you want to know about organization’s history of achieving results?  

The Commission wants to make good investments with the Proposition 10 funds.  If a program has proven success of achieving intended outcomes, the Commission would like to reward success by funding the expansion of the program, or a new needed feature to further ensure successful outcomes.  

11. What are the submittal requirements for capacity building grant applications?

Application will be evaluated based on the following:

· Degree to which the proposed services address an unmet need for children prenatal through age five and their families in Orange County

· Evaluation of the proposed service as promising or innovative

· Qualifications of the applying agency or collaborative to meet the identified need and provide the services

· Proposed involvement of the community and parents in the capacity building and planning process.

Applications must also adhere to the application submittal requirements and address the evaluation components identified above.

12. If you are awarded capacity building funding this year, and your project is successful, what is the likelihood of your program receiving continued funding in successive years?

The Commission is interested in providing sustainable services in the community and views the Capacity Building Program as a vehicle to support sustainable funding for programs.  While capacity building grant recipients may apply for program grants in the future, the intent is for grant recipients to plan and seek sustainable sources beyond Proposition 10.

Continuity of Funding

13. If we were previously funded and grant funds run out prior to May 2nd, may the project be funded prior to May 2 to ensure continuity?  Do you apply for a program grant renewal from the date your contract was executed or from the date your award was announced? 

The “Detailed Funding Request Form” requests budget information related to year one, year two and / or year three of a proposed project. Current grantees that are applying for a renewal of an existing program grant would indicate on the “Detailed Funding Request Form” the amount of funding anticipated for each budget category for the year of funding.  If the project is awarded, Commission staff will work with organizations to ensure that the services would continue from the ending term date of the existing grant agreement.  The renewals might consist of an amendment to an existing grant agreement or may be a new updated agreement.  

14. Will we need to file for an extension to our renewal grant?
Grantees with existing program grants may request a time extension with limited extended funding.  For example, the project may have not been fully operational the first quarter of the term of the agreement and unexpended funds remain.  In addition, due to the slower planned start-up, or a later date once the agreement was executed, there may not be enough evidence to demonstrate program performance to allow the project to be competitive in the review process.  There renewal applicants may wish to indicate on the “Detailed Funding Request Form” a lower request for funding.  For example, the column “Year 1 Request” may be amended to read “Six-Month Request” with a note at the bottom added to state the actions desired.  To continue the example, “Request a six month extension of the current project and addition of $25,000 in project funds.  It is anticipated that $40,000 of first year project funds will be available to continue the project during the extended term”. 

Eligibility and Eligible Expenses

15. May a for-profit corporation apply for a grant?
Yes, both for-profit and non-profit organizations may apply.  The Commission is interested in funding quality viable projects to provide services to Orange County children zero through 5.  Organization structure will be evaluated to ensure that the Commission funded projects have the potential for being most successful in improving outcomes for children.

16. In a collaborative project, may the lead organization and fiscal organization be different? May the fiscal be a non-profit but not the lead?

The Commission is looking to the applicant organization(s) to develop a viable competitive project that will best achieve the specified outcomes. Depending on circumstances, fiscal responsibilities may become the responsibility of one of the project participating agencies – which may not be the project lead. The agencies who enter into contract with the Commission will be the responsible for fiscal control regardless of whether or not they contract out this activity.

17. May a government entity apply for funds? 

The FRA does not exclude government agencies from applying for funds. In reviewing an application submitted by any organization, there are several factors which may be considered.  Is the project consistent with the organization’s core business?  Is this a service that should be funded through other existing revenue sources?  Are there other organizations which already appropriately provide this service? Is there appropriate technical / professional oversight?

18. May services overlap existing services?

By statute, Commission funding cannot supplant or replace any existing or expiring revenue source.  In this respect, service overlap is not eligible for funding.  A goal for the Commission however is to integrate services.  If by “overlap” you mean integrating existing services so that they are easier to access and more responsive, this new added service component would be eligible for funding.  Promoting, funding, supporting and monitoring and integrated quality service system to ensure access to a quality child and family support services delivery system is a goal for the Commission.  Pages 26 – 28 of the Commission’s First Strategic Plan provide key concepts related to development of an “Integrated Quality Service System”.

19. Are administrative costs allowable?

Yes.  The “Funding Application” requests information for indirect and administrative overhead.  It is anticipated that these expenses would be appropriate expenses to carry out the proposed project.  Costs of data tracking, management and reporting may be reflected as part of the administrative overhead if they are not reflected in other program costs.    If administrative costs requested exceed the standard for your industry, you may include a statement on the “Detailed Funding Request Form” to explain how the rate and cost was computed.

20. Is there any additional information regarding what is and what is not allowed as acceptable grant-funded expenditures i.e., computers, etc.?

Unless an expense is identified as disallowed, it may be considered for funding based on the necessity of the resource for achieving the project outcomes.  

21. What if you also provide services for children over 5?  

Many of our local providers provide services to children of all ages.  The Commission may only fund services that will benefit children from the prenatal period through age five.  This is interpreted as support through the fifth year of age.  For some projects, applicants might seek another partner to fund the services for children over 5.  This type of project would ensure continuity of service for children who receive services funded through the Commission – when they turn 6 years of age.

Evaluation

22. May a thorough project evaluation also be considered a service of sorts, in addition to the actual project?  May we apply to do an injury prevention related research project?

The current Request for Application is to provide for the delivery of services for children and families, which may include funds to conduct program evaluation.  Directed research grants will not be funded under this RFA process.

Funds Available and Categories

23. Is there a minimum or maximum amount of funding that may be requested? May you discuss funding levels?   

As presented in the First Strategic Plan, the Commission will make funding decisions based on the relationship to the Proposition 10 purpose, goals and outcomes, compelling community need, and the ability to document meaningful outcomes. In addition, the Commission would like projects to be successful.  Consequently, level of funding decisions will be based upon requirements of the project, the Commission’s priority of outcomes, and available funding, not arbitrary funding levels. 

24. Is this a one time grant or multi year grant?  Is the funding allocation for the categories for one year? If  we are applying for a three year project is all the money allocated from this years funding cycle?

In general, Capacity Building Grants will cover the period of one year.  The Funding Request Form allows for submission of multi-year Program Grant requests.  Contracts may be awarded for one, two or three years depending on the application request and the recommendation of the evaluation panel. Regardless of the number of years funding awarded for the project, all of the dollars awarded will be from current year funds (FY 2001/02).   

Multi-year funding requests will be review by funding panels based on several factors such as:  If a project is fully funded for three years, will it require all of the available funding in that funding category?   Are there other Program Grant applications that address other identified needs or higher priority needs? 

25. When does funding begin?  The fiscal cycle listed is for July 1 – June 30.  

The current funding cycle will allocate the Commission’s FY 01/02 funds (July 1 – June 30).  It is anticipated that funded projects will begin May 2.  Consequently, the contract term may be May 2,2002 to May 1, 2003.

26. May an organization submit more than one proposal under one or more funding categories?

- and - 

May an organization partner with multiple collaboratives, propose multiple projects and enter into multiple contracts with the Commission?

                                                           -  and - 

May an Agency submit multiple funding applications or should all requests be in one application?

An agency may submit more than one proposal however the organization must assure that they have the capacity to provide all proposed services.  Each application should reflect one distinct primary program emphasis.  The project may include several strategies and collaborative partners who will engage to achieve the identified outcomes.  If an organization wishes to propose a project that consists of several strategies related to one primary program emphasis, for example “Health Access” they should submit one application.  If an organization wishes to carry out several strategies related to differing funding categories, they should submit the projects as separate applications.  If several applications are submitted, the applicant should indicate in the cover letter the ranked priority of each application.  It must be a numeric ranked priority – priority 1, priority 2, etc.


If funding an organization to develop more than one project, the Commission would be interested in ensuring that all funded organizations have the capacity to:

· Deploy projects immediately once funded 

· Provide the proposed services
27. On the “Funding Application”, if a proposed project fits into several funding categories – may I check more than one category?  For example, may I check both health access and early care and education? 

-  and  - 

Many of our programs include many funding categories.  How do we indicate the category?

Although a project may focus on several outcomes, the applicant must select the one category that represents the primary program emphasis.  

28. If you apply to two categories of funding, do you have to submit an application for each?

Yes.

29. What category would Family Resource Center (FRC) fall under?

Projects are funded related to the goals and outcomes proposed by the project, not the location of where services are provided.  Depending on the purpose of the project, a FRC could request funds under any of the funding categories.  Health access strategies could be provided at a FRC along with School readiness / parent literacy projects.

Similarly, a child care center may be funded  to increase health access, prevent injury, or provide for parent education or family counseling.

30. If one project is submitted to two funding categories (with an explanation of this in the cover letter) should the budget be submitted to each funding category in it’s entirety, or should the budget be split for the 2 funding categories?

In general, one project won’t be competitive in two funding categories.  When a project is developed, look at the goals / outcomes / indicators of the work plan to determine the funding category to apply for.  If truly there are two distinct purposes of the project that will be integrated, two separate proposals should be developed which may have several similar or identical components that explain how the two projects are integrated.

31. Is it true that grant requests for media companies must be directed to the STATE- rather than the Orange County Commission?

The State is not providing grants for media campaigns. The State has allocated funds for a statewide media campaign. The local commission has hired a PR firm to promote local projects and coordinate with funded programs to promote the projects that the Commission has funded.

32. We have heard that the Commission will be funding projects submitted by CHOC or UCI only through the Pediatric Health Services Initiative.  If I am from CHOC or UCI, may I submit an application through this RFA process?
As presented at the RFA Pre-Application process, to ensure that projects developed by CHOC or UCI are considered and coordinated by the Pediatric Health Services Initiative, the following procedure will be used:

· Applications received from CHOC or UCI will be reviewed to determine if the project is consistent with the purposes of the Initiative.

· If the project is deemed within the purpose of the Initiative, the application will be reviewed by the Initiative for a funding recommendation.  

· If the project is deemed outside of the scope of the Initiative, the application will be referred to the RFA review team for consideration.

33. We are preparing to submit a capacity building application.  Part 4 of the RFA notifies us that the capacity building grant questions for preparing the Narrative are different than for program grants.  However, we don’t see a different set of questions for capacity building grants.  What should we be addressing in preparing the Capacity Building Grant application?
This instruction should be revised to indicate that program grant and capacity building grant questions are the SAME.

Renewals

34. If renewing program grant, may we change funding category?

In general, program grants should request renewal under the funding category through which they were funded.  There could be a situation where a funded project has made program improvements to ensure successfully achievement of outcomes but now is a better “fit” under another funding category.  This might be addressed in the application “Narrative” or “Additional Information”.

35. If a current project got a late start, may the current contract apply for an extension in order to continue services for a longer period, reach contracted outcomes, and then reapply in the second 2002 funding cycle?
Yes.  If no additional funds are needed, the extension may be accomplished by requesting the extension through the Commission Contract Officer.  An application does not need to be submitted.  If an extension is desired in addition to a request for funding, an application needs to be submitted along with clarification of the request in the application.

36. If requesting an extension, that does not involve increased funding, does the entire application need to be submitted?

No.  Existing grantees are encouraged to seek grant extensions if they have not completed the project, are not prepared to show program results, and have remaining funds within the existing contract.  An application does not need to be completed for a no cost time extension.  Contact the Commission Contract Officer for instructions on requesting the extension.

37. If an organization has requested contract waivers with another Commission contract, may those changes stand for future contracts?

Yes.  Further waivers could be considered by the RFA review teams. The request for waiver would still need to be listed in the cover letter submitted with the application. Waivers will be considere, along with the full scope of services proposed to be provided, during the RFA review process.

38. We are applying to renew our Early Care and Education Grant. Will the Commission consider an expanded version of the project based on new information and lessons learned during the first year?

Yes.  Continued improvement is very important to the to ensure achievement of outcomes consequently the Commission expects that improved projects will be proposed based on lessons learned. 

Sustainability and Fund Leveraging

39. What does leveraged funds mean?  
The Commission is interested in using Proposition 10 funds to create new opportunities to tap into other revenue sources.  These other funds could be from government sources, private foundation resources, or other resources.  For example, in several of the Commission’s programs, Proposition 10 dollars are used to pay for Public Health Nurses who could claim a portion of their services to state Medi-Cal revenue.  

40. We are currently serving 30 families.  What will those families do if they are unable to receive services?

When organizations submit requests for Commission funding, they provide information on project sustainability.  That information would be key to understanding what would happen to the family including what transitions were planned for.  The Commission is concerned about ensuring that families continue to receive needed services. Organizations that find that services can’t be continued after Commission funds end may contact their contract lead staff to discuss transition plans. 

41. How do we estimate what funds MAA, TCM or other leveraged funds would contribute?

The Commission has developed a fiscal leveraging plan that includes assisting agencies to “draw down” MAA and TCM.  Participation in these leverage projects takes time for time study, submitting a plan to the state for approval, submitting claims and receiving the payments. Leveraged funds may not necessarily be fully reflected in the coming year project.  In general, 

TCM and MAA may assist in realizing up to 50% of eligible project costs. 

42. What, if anything, do government (county) agencies need to submit under Part 6- documentation?

Government entities do not have a submission requirement.

Work Plans

43. We need additional information about selecting outcomes / indicators for the project.  
In developing a project, you will first want to select the outcomes you desire to achieve and the indicators by which you will measure your success.  Applicants should review the Strategic Plan, pages 15 though 28, and develop a performance plan consistent with Commission goals, outcomes and indicators identified.  The Strategic Plan should be a starting point for evaluating and identifying what outcomes and indicators your proposed project is directed at achieving.  

44. In the guidelines for completion of the Work Plan, there are multiple references to a strategies list.  Does this refer to the strategies in the First Strategic Plan on the matrix with the goals, objectives, etc or to the strategies list that may be downloaded from the RFA section?

The strategies list posted on the web along with the RFA should be used for development of the Work Plan.

45. Is it possible to have strategies that are not listed?

Applicants must select the most closely associated strategy listed on the above referenced strategies list.  Recommendations for additional strategies may be noted on the Work Plan as a footnote and could be considered for standardization in OCERS.   

46. When should the Work Plan begin? 

In developing the Work Plan, consider when you would want the project to start.  For a new project that will start May 2, the Work Plan should start May 2.  If you have a current project that ends April 1, and desire to start renewal funding on April 2, the Work Plan should begin April 2. 

47. I noted that the funding awards are to be announced in February, may the program activities and Work Plan funded by this grant begin before 5/1/01?

The current funding timeline is based on first year experience related to the time it takes to develop and negotiate project contracts.   Renewal applicants should propose what they see as needed to make the project successful and limit negative impact of recipients of services and staff.  In general, new projects can be developed which may include limited start up costs incurred prior to May 2.  

48. Once you choose the “Children Ready to Learn” category, can you have aspects in Work Plan under Outcomes for Healthy Children and / or Strong Families?
Yes.  Although applicants are required to select a primary emphasis of the project for purposes of determining a funding category and ensuring project focus, complex projects may address several goal areas.  For example, the most frequent use of dual goals is related to projects that address “Healthy Children” and “Integrated Quality Services”.

49. If we are requesting multi-year funding, how do we indicate multi-year goals, strategies and milestones in subsequent years?

The organization would create the multi-year activities as separate Milestones.  These milestones would indicate the new start and target dates. As an example the Work Plan might indicate; “First year…….”  Milestones and “ Second year…” Milestones.

50. When completing the Work Plan what milestones should I include?

The Milestones should cover the term of the contract, generally one year, and include those major accomplishments that will be achieved over the course of the service for deployment, organizational planning, and piloting services.  For capacity building grants, one Milestone must relate to completion of a Business or Service Plan.

